
 

Regeneration and Leisure Scrutiny Sub-
Committee 

 
Tuesday 29 June 2010 

7.00 pm 
Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 

 
Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Mark Glover (Chair) 
Councillor Columba Blango 
Councillor Catherine Bowman 
Councillor Dan Garfield 
Councillor Helen Morrissey 
Councillor Paul Noblet 
Councillor Martin Seaton 
Councillor Michael Situ 
 

Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor Helen Hayes 
Councillor Jeff Hook 
Councillor Andy Simmons 
Councillor Geoffrey Thornton 
 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
 Julie Timbrell on 020 7525 0514  or email: julie.timbrell@southwark.gov.uk   
 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: 21 June 2010 
 

 
 

Open Agenda



 

Regeneration and Leisure Scrutiny Sub-
Committee 

 
Tuesday 29 June 2010 

7.00 pm 
Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 

 
 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 
 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members to declare any personal interests and dispensation in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 
 

 

 To appoint the vice-chair of the sub-committee for 2010/11. 
 
Nomination received: Councillor Paul Noblet. 
 

 

5. CANADA WATER LIBRARY - UPDATE AND FINANCIAL POSITION 
 

 

 (Papers to follow.) 
 

 

6. SOUTHWARK EMPLOYMENT & ENTERPRISE STRATEGIES 
 

1 - 23 

7. WORK PROGRAMMING AND SCOPING 
 

24 - 26 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING. 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

 PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START 
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT. 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 
Date:  21 June 2010 
 



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2009-1012 

 1 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 6
1



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

  

 

CONTENTS 

  

1. INTRODUCTION............................................................................. 1 

2. EMPLOYMENT STRATEGY ............................................................... 2 

Background and context.................................................................... 2 

Challenges and opportunities ............................................................. 3 

Priorities for action ........................................................................... 8 

3. ENTERPRISE STRATEGY............................................................... 12 

Background and context...................................................................12 

Challenges and opportunities ............................................................13 

Priorities for action ..........................................................................17 

 

2



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2009-1012 

 1 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

introduction 

 

 

 

1.1. The Enterprise and Employment Partnerships have come together under the umbrella 
of the Southwark Alliance Local Economy Partnership to agree revised strategies to 
support the local economy and the economic wellbeing of the borough’s residents. 
The partnerships have successfully worked to make inroads into the borough’s 
economic challenges. However, despite recent large scale jobs growth, rates of 
worklessness remain high. Overall levels of entrepreneurship are low, and growth 
has been concentrated in the financial and business services sector in the central 
activity zone in the north of the borough, distant from the needs and lives of the 
majority of our residents. The revised strategies have been produced during the 
most severe recession in recent history, and at a time of significant change in the 
national and regional policy environment, and in the planning and delivery of skills, 
welfare to work and business support at the local levels.  

1.2. The review process for the strategies involved work across the partnerships through 
a partner conference that refined the visions and priorities for the strategies, and a 
wide-scale consultation process seeking the views and priorities of a range of those 
groups of individuals most in need of employment support, as well as local 
businesses and their representatives.  

1.3. We have agreed that our visions for the strategies are “to create a strong sustainable 
economy, with a thriving network of town centres, built on an entrepreneurial 
culture”; and “to build sustainable, inclusive, and prosperous communities by 
reducing worklessness and sustaining high quality employment for all Southwark’s 
residents.”  

1.4. The economic assessment that underpins the refreshed strategies describes the 
challenges facing local businesses and residents in our borough, as well as the 
opportunities resulting from the potential for growth afforded by Southwark’s 
location within London and the opportunity areas identified for regeneration. The 
Partnership, working with employers and the Voluntary and Community Sector, is  
determined to make increasing inroads in tackling deprivation, inequality and child 
poverty, and in extending the benefits of growth across the borough. Bringing 
together work on local economic development with improving the skills and 
employment status of the boroughs residents will help achieve this goal.  

1.5. At the time these strategies are being developed, unemployment in London is still 
rising as a result of the recession, and the economic outlook is uncertain. We are 
also entering a time of forecast reductions in public expenditure. While we are 
clearer about the challenges ahead of us, we also recognise that we will need to work 
far more effectively within the resources that are available in order to tackle them in 
the coming years. These strategies set out our commitment to more effective 
partnership working and co-ordination and to finding the most effective way of using 
our individual and collective agency resources to tackling our joint priorities.   

1.6. The strategies that follow summarise the evidence for identifying these priorities, and 
these are supported by detailed annual delivery plans. The evidence base is set out 
in the in the form of the Southwark Economic Assessment published alongside this 
document.  

INTRODUCTION 

3



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 2 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

2. EMPLOYMENT STRATEGY  

  

  

 Background and context 

2.1. Southwark 2016, the sustainable community strategy sets out the overarching 
framework and vision for the borough with ambitious goals to reduce inequality; 
improve life chances of all residents through economic well-being and educational 
potential; and, make the borough a better place by developing a vibrant economy 
whilst using resources sustainably. These ambitions will require an even greater 
degree of endeavour by the new Local Economy Group in the light of the current 
recession.  

2.2. During these challenging economic times it is important to ensure those furthest 
from the labour market aren’t marginalised even further because of the short 
term impacts of the recession.  Partners in Southwark are already responding to 
these challenges by: monitoring the impact of the recession; promoting the JCP 
Rapid Response Unit; creating new jobs for young people through the Future Jobs 
Fund; and through the work of the Southwark Financial Inclusion Forum, which has 
won an award for its action to tackle the impact of the recession.       

2.3. Since the Southwark Employment Strategy was revised in 2006, the Partnership has 
continued to focus on providing intensive and personalised employability support for 
those furthest from the labour market focused on tackling barriers to work. 
Southwark Works, our flagship worklessness programme, continues to provide 
valuable outreach and support our residents through their journey to work. There 
has been much work done within the Partnership to embed the employability agenda 
in other service provision for example, mental health services and housing.  

2.4. There has also been much work done to extend the reach of employability services, 
for example, the Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) service within 
the South London and Maudsley Hospital which has been successfully mainstreamed 
by the Primary Care Trust.  This work has also been recognised as good practice in 
partnership working by the Cabinet Office.   

2.5. Since the last strategy refresh the borough’s employment rate has risen from 64.9%1 
to 67%2 in 2009, meaning that an estimated additional 12,200 residents have 
secured employment. The gap between the Southwark and London employment rate 
has reduced from 3.9% to 2.2%. In terms of Education and Skills, according to the 
Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2007, there have been real and significant 
improvements. No areas of the borough were found in the 10% most deprived band 
for England, and fewer areas were in the 0-30% most deprived for this domain in 
comparison to any other domain.  

2.6. The Southwark Local Area Agreement 2008-11 provides the framework for 
monitoring and focusing the implementation of the Employment Strategy, and sets 

                                       
1  Source Annual Population Survey July 2005 – June 2006 
2  Source Annul Population Survey July 2008 – June 2009 

EMPLOYMENT STRATEGY 

4



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 3 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

out a series of performance indicators and targets that have been agreed by the 
Southwark Alliance and central government. The key indicators which relate to the 
employment strategy are: 

• Working age people on out of work benefits (NI 152) and working age people on 
out of work benefits in the worst areas (NI 153)  

• Inequality gap reduction in attainment at 19 Level 2 (NI 82)   

• % of the working age population with no qualifications (Local) 

• 16-18 year olds Not in Employment, Education and Training (NI 117) 

• Care leavers in education, training or employment (NI 148) 

• Young offenders engagement in suitable education, employment and training (NI 
45) 

• Proportion of offenders in employment at the end of their order or licence (NI 
144) 

• Adults with learning disabilities in employment (NI 146)  

• Adults in contact with secondary mental health services in employment (NI 150)       

• Local ESOL provision (Local) 

2.7. The targets related to these indicators – which were refreshed in April 2010 – include 
maintaining the gap of -1.7% between the Southwark and London out-of-work 
claimant stock up to May 2011 against a background of projected increase in 
claimant rates in the same period. Other targets are raising the proportion of 
residents qualified to at least level 2 from 65.83% in 2008/09 to 66.5% by 2010/11, 
and reducing the proportion of residents with no qualifications from 20.17% to 
19.5% over the same period. The targets are challenging, and need to be so in order 
to make inroads into tackling the entrenched worklessness and poverty experienced 
by some of our borough’s residents.  

 Challenges and opportunities 

2.8. Southwark has changed significantly over the last decade. Close to the centre of 
London, the borough has been able to harness the dramatic growth of the London 
economy in order to regenerate deprived neighbourhoods for local communities and 
businesses. This has meant that the number jobs and businesses in the borough 
have expanded rapidly. However despite the large scale growth in jobs, rates of 
worklessness remain high and unemployment is concentrated among certain groups, 
particularly in certain localities. 

 High rates of economic inactivity and benefit claimants   

2.9. In 2008 127,800 residents in Southwark were in employment, representing 66% of 
the working age population. This figure is significantly below the London and national 
averages of 70% and 75% respectively.  

5



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 4 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

ECONOMIC INACTIVITY RATE 2008 

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22% 24% 26% 28% 30%

GB

London

Inner London

Wandsworth

Lewisham

Lambeth

Southwark

% of working age population

Source: Annual Population Survey, April 2007 – March 2008    

2.10. Levels of unemployment and economic inactivity are above average. There were 
12,600 unemployed people in Southwark in 2008, an unemployment rate of 9% of 
the economically active population. This rate was above the Inner London (8%) and 
London averages (7%). The level of economic inactivity in Southwark is higher than 
that seen in London and GB. In 2008, 53,500 residents were classed as economically 
inactive, a rate of 28%. This compares to regional and national averages of 25% and 
21% respectively.   

2.11. In May 2008 16% of Southwark’s working age population were claiming out of work 
benefits, a total of 27,700 people. This is higher than the London average (14%) 
although it is below that of some other Inner London boroughs – Tower Hamlets 
(19%), Greenwich (18%). Further, over the previous five years Southwark has 
managed to reduce the gap with the London average. Incapacity Benefit is the 
most commonly claimed out of work benefit, in May 2008 there were around 13,300 
IB claimants in the borough.  

2.12. The UK moved into a deep recession in 2008, the deepest and longest since 
records began, and evidence suggests recovery may be hesitant and prolonged, 
particularly with respect to employment growth. In common with the rest of the 
country, the claimant count in Southwark is increasing rapidly as a result of the 
recession. The number of people claiming jobseekers allowance increased from 6,300 
in June 2008 to 9,200 in June 2009. This was an increase of 46% over the period, 
below the Inner London (+51%) and London rates of growth (64%) and significantly 
below the GB average (+86%).  The claimant count rate in Southwark rose from 
3.2% of the working age population in June 2008 to 4.7% by June 2009.  

 

 

Despite success in reducing the gap with the London average, levels of 
unemployment and economic inactivity in Southwark are still relatively high for 
Inner London. We have agreed that to achieve reductions we need a step change 
in the rate at which we move people into employment. To do this, we need to find 
ways of working more effectively across Jobcentre Plus, Southwark Works, Health 
and Housing services, and with other providers.     

Priority One: more effective and efficient partnership working to increase 
the number of residents in work  

6



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 5 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

 Worklessness is concentrated among particular groups 

2.13. The population of Southwark is ethnically diverse and growing. The total population 
of Southwark stood at 274,000 in 2007, representing an increase of 15% since 1997. 
Southwark’s population has grown at a significantly faster rate over the period 
compared to London (+8%) and GB (+5%), and has experienced a marginally higher 
growth rate compared to Inner London as a whole (+13%). The population is 
ethnically diverse, 53% of the resident population were classed as white British in 
2007 while the largest ethnic populations are Black African (12%) and Black 
Caribbean (6%). The borough is also a major destination for overseas migrants, in 
2007/08 almost 10,000 migrants registered for national insurance in Southwark. 

SOUTHWARK, POPULATION BY ETHNIC GROUP 2007 

2%

10%
1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

2%

1%

6%

12%

2% 3% 2%

3%

53%

White: British

White: Irish

White: Other White

Mixed: White and Black Caribbean

Mixed: White and Black African

Mixed: White and Asian

Mixed: Other Mixed

Asian or Asian British: Indian

Asian or Asian British: Pakistani

Asian or Asian British: Bangladeshi

Asian or Asian British: Other Asian

Black or Black British: Black Caribbean

Black or Black British: Black African

Black or Black British: Other Black

Chinese or Other Ethnic Group: Chinese

Chinese or Other Ethnic Group: Other
 

Source: ONS Estimated resident population by ethnic group, mid-2007 (experimental statistics)   

2.14. The employment rate for ethnic minorities in Southwark is below the average at 57% 
of the working age population in 2008. Ethnic minority unemployment is particularly 
high, with Black and Black British being disproportionately represented among the 
unemployed in Southwark. Despite making up just 20% of the local population3 they 
make up over a third of all JSA claimants in the borough.  

2.15. The employment rate is also significantly lower for females in Southwark compared 
to males. In 2008 the employment rate for women stood at 57% compared to 74% 
for men. Levels of economic inactivity among working age females (36.4%) in 2008 
is significantly higher than the level among men in Southwark (19.7%).  This pattern 
is more pronounced in Southwark than elsewhere. In May 2008 there were a total of 
6,900 lone parent claims in Southwark, 3.5% of the working age population. More 
than half of the borough’s children live in poverty.  

2.16. The cost for families of living in London is very high. House prices and childcare costs 
mean that parents are at a disadvantage in the competitive Labour market. Cost of 
childcare is a major issue for many parents. For parents who don’t use childcare but 
would like to use it, the most frequent barrier is that it is too expensive. Inflexibility 
of employers is also seen as a big factor by many parents in their decision to work.   

2.17. The number of young people participating in employment, education or training is 
below average. This pattern is a reflection of the national and regional picture, but 

                                       
3  Estimated resident population by ethnicity and age group 2007 (experimental statistics), ONS 2007 

7



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 6 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

the difference is more pronounced in Southwark than elsewhere.  Southwark suffers 
from higher levels of long-term unemployed, 7% of JSA claimants have been 
claiming for more than two years4 a much higher proportion than the national (1%) 
and regional averages (2%). This indicates that there are more individuals facing 
multiple barriers to work.   

2.18. Levels of worklessness in Southwark are above average and are concentrated among 
certain groups, such as ex-offenders and young offenders, BME residents, women, 
young people, people with disabilities, the over 50s, those with mental health needs 
and lone parents. These groups are affected by particular barriers to employment 
and training/education. We have identified a number of key barriers to employment 
these include: 

• limited access to and awareness of services/ information; 

• limited access to ESOL courses; 

• limited employer participation; 

• limited basic skills; 

• limited vocational and soft skills; 

• limited confidence and motivation; 

• lack of affordable and flexible child care; and, 

• poor physical and mental health. 

  

 Sharing the benefits of growth and regeneration 

2.19. Southwark has embarked on a significant process of transformation through physical 
regeneration. While development has slowed through the recession, it is forecast to 
resume, and regeneration will continue to be a key feature in the future through 
planned development schemes such as Elephant and Castle, Canada Water, and the 
Aylesbury estate. There has also been a rapid expansion of the business base 
coupled with considerable jobs growth over the last decade.  

2.20. In 2007 there were a total of 165,800 people working in Southwark. Southwark has 
experienced significant jobs growth since 2003. Employment grew by 22,600 jobs 
between 2003 and 2007 – a growth rate of 16% outperforming the sub-regional 
average (6%) and significantly higher than the regional and national averages (both 
at 4%). Jobs growth has been concentrated in Southwark’s largest employing sector, 
business services which since 1998 has contributed 31,500 new jobs to the 
borough’s economy.  

 

 
                                       
4  Claimant Count, DWP, May 2009  

In Southwark there are concentrations of particular groups facing multiple 
barriers to employment. We have agreed that tackling the barriers that priority 
groups face in accessing and sustaining employment should remain the top 
priority for the partnership. 

Priority Two: to tackle the barriers that priority groups face in 
accessing and sustaining employment. 

8



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 7 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

EMPLOYMENT CHANGE BY SECTOR IN SOUTHWARK, 1998-2007 

-10000 -5000 0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000

Transport, storage and communication

Wholesale and retail

Public admin

Manufacturing

Financial services

Health and social work

Primary industries

Utilities

Construction

Other services

Education

Hotels and restaurants

Business services

 
Source: Annual Business Inquiry 

 
2.21. London forecasts5 which take into account the impact of the recession suggest while 

many sectors are currently experiencing a downturn and in particular financial 
services, business and professional services, real estate and consumer industries, 
this will be a short-term cyclical phenomenon and that growth will resume in these 
sectors the future.   

  

 Skills for sustainable employment  

2.22. Southwark is part of the London labour market. Commuting patterns show, as 
elsewhere in London, that there is a high level of commuting from Southwark into 
the City, West End and elsewhere in London, and equally there is a high level of 
commuting into the borough, particularly from the suburbs and the wider 
Metropolitan area. Our strategy recognises that Southwark’s residents will face high 
levels of competition for jobs in the area, but also have the opportunity to access 
jobs across London, but need to have the right skills to do this. 

2.23. Although our population includes a high proportion of well-qualified people, it also 
includes an above average proportion of people with no qualifications at all. In 2007 
43% of Southwark residents were qualified to degree level, above the London 
average of 37%, but 16% of the resident population had no qualifications against a 
regional average of 13%. The proportion of residents with no qualifications is highest 
among women and, by age, among those over 50. However, worryingly, almost one-
fifth of young people aged 16 to 24 have no formal qualifications. These young 
people will find it very difficult to find work. Although improving, the performance of 
school pupils at GCSE level is slightly below national and regional averages. The level 
of young people not in employment, education or training (NEET) currently stands at 
8.7% which is below the national average of 9.3% but slightly higher than the level 
for London.  

                                       
5  GLA Economics  

Southwark has benefited from an expansion of jobs outwards from the City of 
London, and the identification of regeneration and employment opportunity areas. 
We need to ensure that we promote take up of these additional jobs, as well as 
jobs with existing employers, by local residents. Working with employers and 
developers as well as with local communities will be vital to achieve this aim. 

Priority Four: to work with businesses and employers to open up 
employment opportunities for local residents  

9



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 8 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

NO QUALIFICATIONS BY AGE GROUP (%), 2007 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

50-retirement age 25-49 yrs 16-24 yrs

Southwark London Great Britain

 
Source: Annual Population Survey, Jan 2007 -Dec 2007 

2.24. There is a strong correlation between having low skills and being unemployed. This is 
particularly true in London, where those with low skills (NVQ 2 or less) have an 
employment rate of 56 percent compared with 67 percent nationally6.  

2.25. While raising skills is therefore a key priority, we also need to make sure that skills 
provision is tailored to meeting employer needs both now and in the future. We will 
also work with employers to promote staff training so that once in work people can 
stay and progress. This will help reduce unemployment “churn” and increase the 
numbers of entry-level jobs available. 

  

 Priorities for action 

 Priority 1. More effective and efficient partnership working   

2.26. Despite some success in reducing the gap with the London average, levels of 
unemployment and economic inactivity in Southwark are still relatively high for Inner 
London. We have agreed that to achieve reductions we need a step change in 
effectiveness in moving people into employment across our services. We recognise 
that in the context of reduced public expenditure we need to work together in 
smarter ways to achieve this step change. We need to find ways of working more 
effectively across Jobcentre Plus, Southwark Works, Health and Housing services, 
and with other providers. We need raise awareness among our residents of the 
support available and work to co-ordinate employability provision in the borough to 
create a seamless and joined up offer to job-seekers and employers so that there is 
no ‘wrong door’.  

                                       
6  Labour Force Survey, Spring 2006 

Too many of our residents lack the skills that they need to be able to compete 
effectively in the labour market and take advantage of the jobs in Southwark 
and elsewhere in London. Skills are central to increasing employment, helping 
people stay in work and giving them the opportunities to progress , as well as 
free up entry level jobs for unemployed people.  

Priority Five: to raise the skill levels of our residents and ensure 
appropriate training is provided to meet employer demand. 

10



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 9 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

2.27. Some of the actions we will take to deliver this priority include -  

• Align and rationalise employability provision in the borough;  

• Co-ordinate approaches to employers and develop more effective signposting, 
referral and co-ordination of services for job seekers;  

• Embed employability provision with housing, health, community safety and 
children’s services to extend the reach of employment support, and to tackle 
multiple barriers to employment; and 

• Co-ordinate employability provision through the development of a Work and Skills 
Plan.  

 Priority 2. Tackling the barriers faced by priority groups  

2.28. The recession has led to rising levels of unemployment in Southwark which has 
increased pressure on Job Centre Plus and other employment services provision. 
However, during these challenging economic times it is important to ensure those 
furthest from the labour market aren’t marginalised even further because of the 
short term impacts of the recession. That’s why we are committed, as a partnership, 
to supporting those are furthest from labour market and who face multiple barriers 
to accessing employment. 

2.29. Levels of worklessness in Southwark are concentrated among certain groups, such as 
ex-offenders and young offenders, BME residents, women, young people, people with 
disabilities, the over 50’s, those with mental health needs and lone parents. These 
priority groups are reflected in our LAA targets. These groups are affected by 
particular barriers to employment and training/education. We have identified a 
number of key barriers to employment which we will seek to address these include: 

• limited access to and awareness of services/ information; 

• limited access to ESOL courses; 

• limited employer participation; 

• limited basic skills; 

• limited vocational and soft skills; 

• limited confidence and motivation; 

• poor health/mental health; and, 

• limited access to affordable and flexible childcare. 

2.30. We will work with our partners to continue to develop innovative projects to improve 
the employment prospects of priority groups. We are committed to increasing the 
volume, affordability and flexibility of childcare provision for our residents. We are 
also committed to tackling in work poverty.    

2.31. Some of the actions we will take to deliver against this priority include -  

• Ensure an appropriate and adequate supply of specialist, personalised and 
tailored support for priority groups;  

• Commission sufficient high quality basic skills, ESOL and appropriate training for 
Southwark residents;  

• Continue to make the case for additional funds to meet the needs of priority 
groups; and, 

• Promote self-employment as a route into employment for priority groups.  

11



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 10 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

 Priority 3. Business and employer engagement  

2.32. Southwark’s businesses and residents have already benefited from the physical 
regeneration of our borough. This regeneration will continue to be a key feature in 
the future through planned development schemes such as Elephant and Castle, 
Canada Water, and the Aylesbury estate. We will continue to work with developers 
and local communities to ensure that local residents benefit from opportunities 
arising from these regeneration schemes, particularly in relation to training and 
employment.  

2.33. Despite strong jobs growth in the borough over the last decade many local residents 
remain without work. The role of employers is vital in tackling persistently high levels 
of worklessness despite significant job growth. We will continue to work with our  
public and third sector partners to develop work placements and apprenticeships for 
priority groups and embed local economic benefits into public sector procurement.  

2.34. We will also continue to work in partnership with the local business community 
building on successful initiatives such as the employer-led START programme and 
the Local Employer Partnership. This will be increasingly important as public sector 
recruitment comes under pressure from reduced resources. We will explore new 
mechanisms for engaging private sector employers, particularly the opportunity to 
link with smaller businesses located in areas where levels of worklessness are 
highest.  

2.35. Some of the actions we will take to delivery against this priority include -  

• Engage more employers to identify skill needs and develop entry points for 
workless individuals, and training for those in work; 

• Co-ordinate business and employer engagement across services;   

• Continue to promote and develop apprenticeships and work placements with local 
businesses and with public sector partners; and, 

• Work with developers to secure opportunities for Southwark residents.   

 Priority 4. Raising skills for sustained employment 

2.36. We need to ensure that our residents have the right skills to be able to compete in 
the London labour market. Current educational reforms place an increasing emphasis 
on the educational system to reflect the needs of the local economy. To be able to 
ensure that these links are made, it will be necessary to develop effective employer 
engagement mechanisms in the educational agenda. This offers a great opportunity 
to ensure that skills provision for young people is geared up to meet the current and 
future skills needs of employers. We will make sure that this happens by working 
increasingly closely with Young Southwark, the Children’s Trust as the strategic 
commissioners of services for getting more young people into education, 
employment and training and raising attainment at 19, supporting the delivery of 
key targets in the Children and Young People’s Plan 2010-2013.  

2.37. We will work to support improved quality and accessibility of Information Advice and 
Guidance, making links to the Adult Advancements and Careers Service and 
Connexions. We want to ensure that our Connexions service provides the best 
possible demand led advice and guidance to young people in the borough.   

2.38. Train to Gain is designed to respond to the needs of employers. It aims to help 
improve the productivity and competitiveness of businesses by ensuring that staff 

12



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 11 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

have the right skills to do the best job. We will work closely with Business Link to 
promote the uptake of Train to Gain in Southwark 

2.39. Improving sustainability in work is a major objective for our partners. We will create 
more vocational routes and supported placement schemes such as modern 
apprenticeships and placements with public service agencies. We will invest in and 
promote skills development and career progression which improves people’s life 
chances and generates mobility in the local labour market will enable other 
unemployed people to access employment.  

2.40. Some of the actions we will take to deliver against this priority include -  

• Work closely with Business Link and other agencies as appropriate to promote 
the uptake of train to gain;  

• Integrate the work of Connexions, Adult Advancement and Careers Service and 
other Information Advice and Guidance provision with employment and economic 
development services; 

• Provide increased in-work support for successful job seekers to increase 
sustainability in work; 

• Encourage and promote vocational training within the workplace; and, 

• Improve links between employability and skills strategy and commissioning.    

13



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 12 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

3. ENTERPRISE STRATEGY  

  

  

 Background and context 

3.1. .Southwark 2016, the sustainable community strategy sets out the overarching 
framework and vision for the borough with ambitious goals to reduce inequality; 
improve life chances of all residents through economic well-being and educational 
potential; and, make the borough a better place by developing a vibrant economy 
whilst using resources sustainably. These ambitions will require an even greater 
degree of endeavour by the new Local Economy Group in the light of the current 
recession.  

3.2. The sustainable community strategy provides the overall framework for our work. 
The context for the Southwark Enterprise Strategies has changed enormously since 
the documents were last reviewed three years ago and there are a number of new 
economic and policy drivers, these include: the recession; forecast reductions in 
public expenditure; changes to the business support landscape; and, the election of  
a new London Mayor. 

3.3. Southwark’s ambitions were set during a period of sustained economic growth and 
their achievement will require an even greater degree of endeavour by public and 
private partners in the light of the current recession. The UK moved into a deep 
recession in 2008, the deepest and longest since records began, and evidence 
suggests recovery may be hesitant and prolonged, particularly with respect to 
employment growth.  

3.4. During these challenging economic times it is important to ensure that good local 
businesses are not lost because of the short term impacts of the recession.  
Partners in Southwark are already responding to these challenges by: monitoring the 
impact of the recession so far; promoting the Business Link Rapid Response Service; 
providing intensive outreach support to struggling businesses; introducing flexible 
rent payment schedules on council owned commercial properties and improving 
access to public sector contract opportunities through the Supply Southwark Group. 

3.5. Future challenges for partners will arise via the forecast reduction of public 
expenditure. In the face of reduce public expenditure we need work increasingly in 
partnership to combine services to reduce costs. The current Total Place pilots may 
provide ways in which this can be done through assessing the total funding spent by 
public agencies in an area and considering ways in which it can be made more 
effective.  

3.6. The Mayor’s Economic Development Strategy7 argues that to maintain the Capital’s 
competitive position, London must become the world’s most attractive proposition. 
The Mayor will do this by fostering innovation, supporting business competitiveness, 
improving the quality of life and making London as attractive as possible to 

                                       
7  Rising to the challenge – The Mayor’s Economic Development Strategy for Greater London, Draft, 
October 2009    

ENTERPRISE STRATEGY 

14



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 13 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

investment, business and workers. We will identify ways in which we can continue to 
work closely with the LDA and GLA in achieving our joint objectives under new and 
emerging regional programmes, and collaborate with our partner boroughs in Central 
London in achieving this.  

3.7. The policy environment for enterprise support has changed significantly, with the 
development of the Business Support Simplification and the Government’s 
Solutions for Business service offering a streamlined portfolio of business support 
products, accessed via Business Link.  Under this model, we will play a critical role in 
informing local provision including those services which we do not deliver ourselves, 
and in co-ordination of an appropriate range of provision related to identified 
business needs in the borough.  

3.8. We have recognised the need for our work supporting businesses and local 
employers to be co-ordinated with the work undertaken under the employment 
strategy helping residents into jobs. We also want to engage employers more 
effectively in order that they can inform the development of education and training in 
the borough, as well as advising us on ways in which we can be more responsive and 
encourage local enterprise. 

 Challenges and opportunities 

3.9. Southwark has changed significantly over recent years. Close to the centre of 
London, it has been able to harness the dramatic growth of the London economy in 
order to regenerate areas of the borough, and generate significant improvements in 
terms of employment growth, regeneration and environmental improvements, 
provision of better facilities including retail and restaurants and bars. The number 
jobs and businesses in the borough have expanded rapidly over the last decade, 
driven by growth in business services and concentrated in the Central Activities Zone 
(CAZ). 

 Southwark’s role in London  

3.10. Southwark plays a key role in the London economy, and our Economic Assessment 
sets out its relationship with the economy of the Capital and its surroundings. The 
borough boundaries encompass part of the Central Activities Zone as well as areas of 
declining manufacturing industry, an area including part of inner London 
incorporating some of the country’s most deprived neighbourhoods and some areas 
of wealthy suburban commuter-belt.   

Add map 

3.11. Southwark stretches from the Central Activities Zone out towards the suburbs, and 
the spatial distribution of employment activities reflects the distance from the centre 
and the role of different industrial types in each area. Significant numbers of highly 
paid accountancy and other business services occupations are located in the north, 
the presence of the university and health facilities as well as the GLA, LDA and 
Council, provide significant public employment in proximity to this zone. There are 
areas of warehousing slightly further out near Peckham, taking advantage of the 
opportunities for distribution industries of being fairly centrally located, but with 
lower priced premises; and beyond that, industry is more reflective of the service 
needs of the general population.  

3.12. Up until the end of 2008 Southwark’s economy was expanding rapidly. Looking at 
London forecasts, the GLA suggests that while many sectors are currently 

15



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 14 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

experiencing a downturn and in particular financial services, business and 
professional services, real estate and consumer industries, this will be a short-term 
cyclical phenomenon, and in the medium term growth in all these sectors will 
resume. Forecasters suggest that London’s employment growth will, after some 
time, resume its upward trajectory.  Over the medium to longer term, this is a 
positive finding for Southwark, however the rate of future growth cannot be assumed 
and the Council and its partners have an important role to play in ensuring the 
conditions for growth and recovery are in place. 

  

 Significant growth and regeneration 

3.13. There has been a rapid expansion of the business base coupled with considerable 
jobs growth over the last decade. There are some 12,800 companies operating in 
Southwark8. The size of the business base has increased by 3,300 firms (+35%) 
since 1998 outstripping the Inner London (+12%) and regional (+13%) averages. 
There are 21,600 new jobs in the borough since 1998 a growth rate of 15% - above 
the regional (+8%) and national averages.  

CHANGE IN THE NUMBER OF JOBS BY WARD IN SOUTHWARK, 2003-
2007  

-2,000 -1,000 0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,000 10,000

East Walworth
East Dulwich
Newington

Livesey
Peckham Rye
Rotherhithe

College
Brunswick Park

The Lane
South Camberwell

Faraday
Nunhead
Peckham

South Bermondsey
Surrey Docks

Village
Chaucer

Camberwell Green
Grange

Riverside
Cathedrals

 
Source: Annual Business Inquiry 

 

3.14. However, this growth has not been evenly distributed in the borough but 
concentrated in and around the Central Activities Zone. Growth in the number of jobs 

                                       
8  Annual Business Inquiry, ONS, 2007  

During these challenging economic times it is important to ensure that good 
local businesses are not lost because of the short term impacts of the recession 
and that when growth resumes our business are well equipped to harness the 
benefits. 

Priority One: to support our existing businesses through the recession 
and prepare them for the future. 

16



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 15 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

Southwark has expanded rapidly, but growth has been concentrated in the north 
of the borough in and around the Central Activities Zone. We will support the 
spread of employment growth into other parts of the borough through 
regeneration and inward investment. 

Priority Two: to support regeneration schemes to spread growth across 
the borough and enhance our key business districts and town centres.  

in Southwark between 2003 and 2007 has been concentrated in Cathedral (+9,200 
jobs or +18%), and Riverside (+7,200 jobs or +39%), wards covering the Central 
Activity Zone. 

3.15. Parts of Southwark have been transformed in recent years through significant 
physical regeneration of our borough with developments such as MoreLondon 
providing a catalyst for recent employment growth and job creation. This 
regeneration will continue to be a key feature in the future through planned 
development schemes such as Elephant and Castle, Canada Water, and the 
Aylesbury estate. The preferred locations for growth are set out in the Core Strategy  
and include: 

• Bankside, Borough and London Bridge Opportunity area – part of the Central 
Activities Zone the area will continue to be home to a mix of uses providing high 
quality office accommodation alongside world-class retail, tourism, culture and 
entertainment facilities and public spaces providing over 1,900 new homes and 
25,000 new jobs by 2026.  

• The Elephant and Castle Opportunity area – part of the Central Activities zone the 
area the area has potential for redevelopment into an attractive central London 
destination. The vision for the area includes stimulating 440,000 sqm of new 
development with up to 45,000 sqm new shopping and leisure floor space and 
25,000-30,000 sqm of business floorspace with the creation of 5000 new jobs. 
Public transport will become more accessible through a programme of planned 
improvements in conjunction with Transport for London and Network Rail and the 
London South Bank University and London University of the Arts will develop 
further as important centres of learning and innovation.  

• Peckham and Nunhead action area – Peckham town centre is the largest town 
centre in Southwark and changes and improvements will be guided by the 
emerging area action plan. The vision for the area is more new homes and offices 
built and a small increase in retail space, mainly around the Peckham town 
centre. New development will help the area’s independent shops, businesses and 
creative industries flourish.  

• Canada Water and Rotherhithe action area – the plans are to transform Canada 
Water into a town centre, with a strengthened role as a shopping destination by 
expanding retail space by around 35,000 sqm and providing a more diverse 
range of shops than at present, including a department store and independent 
shops. The area will provide at least 2,500 high quality new homes, which will be 
accommodated in generally mixed use development and office development will 
provide much needed space for local occupiers which together with retail 
development, will generate around 2,000 new jobs 

   
 The economy is heavily reliant on business services  

3.16. The business services sector has driven growth in the number of firms in Southwark.  
The number of companies in this sector increased by 2,570 between 1998 and 2007 
a growth rate of 90%, considerably higher than Inner London (+39%), London 
(+39%) and GB (+50%) rates of growth.  The number of firms in the hotels and 

17



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 16 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

restaurants (+290 firms), other services (+300 firms), and health and social work 
(+190 firms) sectors all increased at a significantly faster rate than the sub-regional, 
regional and national averages. 

CHANGE IN THE NUMBER OF FIRMS BY SECTOR, 1998-2007 

-200 200 600 1,000 1,400 1,800 2,200 2,600

Manufacturing

Wholesale and retail

Transport, storage and communication

Public admin and defence

Primary industries

Utilities

Education

Construction

Financial services

Health and social work

Hotels and restaurants

Other services

Business services

 
Source: Annual Business Inquiry 

 

3.17. As demonstrated by the chart below businesses services has also been responsible 
for the majority of jobs growth in the borough since 1998. Since 1998 the sector has 
contributed 31,500 new jobs to the borough’s economy, a growth rate of 102%. This 
is much higher than the rate of growth across the sub-region as a whole (+34%). 
Other services, hotels and restaurants, education and construction have also 
expanded rapidly since 1998. Hotels and restaurants has seen growth of 4,500 jobs, 
a growth rate of 73%, in contrast to growth of just 19% across London as a whole 
and 22% in Inner London. Employment in the education sector has also grown more 
rapidly (+3,900 jobs or +40%) than the Inner London average (+24%). Other 
services grew by 2,200 jobs (+25%) over the period also above the sub-regional 
(+20%) and regional (+22%) growth rates. The construction sector was the only 
other growth sector locally (+1,600 jobs or +35%), while the sector experienced a 
fall in the number of jobs in Inner London (-3%) and London as a whole (-9%).               

3.18. Competitive economies tend to be those with clearly identifiable specialisms or 
clusters of activity, which stimulate productivity growth. We have identified a number 
of sector strengths in the borough which have the potential to drive employment and 
productivity growth in the future. These include: knowledge intensive business 
services; higher education; creative and cultural industries; and tourism.      

 

 Levels of self employment and business start ups are low   

3.19. Despite strong overall growth, business density and formations rates are below the 
regional average. Business density in 20079 (the number of businesses per 1,000 
adult population) in Southwark (55) is lower than the London average (63) and 

                                       
9  Business Demography, ONS, 2007 

We want to make our economy more sustainable through supporting new growth 
sectors. We also want to ensure we take advantage of new opportunities in green 
industries, and promote a greener economy.  

Priority Three: to promote and grow our key sectors and diversify the 
economy to create an increasingly sustainable local economy. 

18



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 17 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

considerably below the Inner London average (88)10. Business formations rates (per 
10,000 resident adults) in Southwark are also lower than the regional figures. In 
2007 there were 2,180 business formations, the company registration rate stood at 
96 per 10,000 resident adults compared to: 123 in Tower Hamlets; 110 in 
Wandsworth; and 103 in London as a whole. However, borough level data obscures 
the geographical distribution of activity in the borough – business formations are 
likely to be very high in the North and relatively low elsewhere.  

 SELF EMPLOYMENT RATE, 2008 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

Greenwich Lambeth Lewisham Southwark Tower
Hamlets

Wandsworth Westminster Inner London London Great Britain

 
Source: Annual Population Survey, April 2007 – March 2008    

3.20. Self-employment rates suggest that there is a lack of entrepreneurial culture among 
Southwark’s resident population, with particularly low levels of self employment 
among women. The self-employment rate is relatively low in Southwark compared to 
many of the other Inner London boroughs displayed in the chart above. In 2008, 
there were 15,000 self-employed residents in Southwark the equivalent of just 8% of 
the working age population. This was lower than the Inner London average (10%), 
the London average (11%), and the neighbouring boroughs of Wandsworth (11%), 
Lewisham (11%) and Westminster (10%). Just 4.3% of working age females in the 
borough are classed as self-employed compared to 11.3% of men.   

 

Priorities for action 

 Priority One: Support existing businesses  

3.21. We will create the conditions in which businesses in Southwark can compete 
effectively within London, across the UK and in the international arena.  The role of 
the Enterprise Partnership is therefore to ensure that business support is co-

                                       
10  It should be noted that Inner London average is considerably inflated by the City of London which has 

an extremely high businesses density rate (1,963 per 1,000 adult population) owing to a higher 
number of businesses and a very small resident population 

Despite a rapid expansion of the business base in the north of the borough overall 
business density in the borough remains low, business start ups are below 
average and levels of self-employment lag behind the regional average. To 
increase economic activity outside the central activity zone we need to stimulate 
enterprise and encourage the growth of an entrepreneurial culture.  

Priority Four: To create an entrepreneurial culture and increase the rate 
of business starts.  

19



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 18 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

ordinated across the borough so that Southwark businesses have excellent and equal 
access to information and appropriate business support. We will also work to: 
improve the level of awareness and take-up of both borough and pan-London 
services and increase the up take of Train to Gain to ensure that our businesses 
benefit from appropriately skilled staff.   

3.22. We recognise the importance of our key sectors in driving economic growth in the 
borough. We will work with the LDA to ensure that there is appropriate business 
support for our key sectors and continue to support active sector led networks, 
enabling opportunities for business to business networking within industry clusters. A 
key factor in supporting growth sectors will be our ability to supply the right range of 
skilled personnel by encouraging the Borough’s colleges and work-based learning 
providers to deliver vocational learning options that support the target sectors, in 
particular, through the our 14-19 Strategy. We will also work to develop links with 
further and higher education institutions including London South Bank University to 
support innovation and business development.  

3.23. Some of the actions we will take to deliver against this priority include -  

• Co-ordinate, align and rationalise business support in the borough; 

• Provide specific support for key sectors, including supporting sector led business 
networks; 

• Promote uptake of Train to Gain; and, 

• Develop links with further and higher education institutions to support emerging 
knowledge intensive businesses.   

Priority Two: Developing key business districts and town 
centres 

3.24. Southwark has experienced a rapid expansion of its business base coupled with 
considerable jobs growth over the last decade. However, this growth has been 
concentrated in the north of the borough in and around the Central Activities Zone. It 
is the ambition of the Local Economy Partnership to support the spread of this 
growth into other parts of the borough through regeneration schemes and inward 
investment in areas such as the Elephant and Castle and Canada Water. To secure 
benefits for local residents we will work closely with the employment partnership to 
identify opportunities for engaging new inward investors in supporting local 
employment 

3.25. Increased private sector investment is essential for Southwark to achieve its 
regeneration ambitions. This includes supporting the development of key sites across 
the borough, promoting the borough to investors, encouraging retailers to the town 
centres and supporting small businesses to invest across the borough. 

3.26. Development of town centres and the development of sustainable communities are 
vital to improving the quality of life and opportunities for the borough’s residents and 
businesses. To achieve this we will continue to support the excellent work of the 
Business Improvement Districts and to further build on existing Town Centre 
Management arrangements. We will work to market our town centres through 
promoting retail and tourism opportunities to visitors, exploring ways to develop the 
night-time economy, and creating new business space developing affordable 
premises and managed workspaces.   

3.27. Some of the actions we will take to deliver against this priority include -  

• Engage new inward investors in supporting local employment; 

20



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 19 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

• Support the development of key sites; 

• Promote and market the borough to inward investors; 

• Build on Town Centre Management to support town centres; and,   

• Continue to provide business space including affordable premises and managed 
workspaces.  

 Priority Three: Creating a more diverse economy 

3.28. The most successful economies combine economic specialisation with diversity. 
Specialisation drives wealth creation and builds sustainable competitive advantage; 
diversity makes places more resilient and less susceptible to economic shocks. As 
well as supporting all of our businesses we will promote the diversification of our 
economy into other areas with the potential for future growth.  

3.29. We have identified areas of concentrations of specialist expertise which we will seek 
to build on, such as cultural and creative industries, tourism, and knowledge 
intensive businesses. We will also build on the success of HE institutions in 
developing firms to take advantage of emerging markets in environmental products 
and services. Reducing the dependence on financial services will make the economy 
more sustainable. We will also work to develop our local services, for example, 
through improving our town centres retail and cultural offer. Provision of a wider 
range of services locally will reduce need to travel out of the borough. 

3.30. We are committed to supporting the development of a greener economy. We will 
continue to promote green business initiatives such as the Southwark Environmental 
Business Awards; the 200 club and improving environmental performance of 
businesses in the Business Improvement Districts. We will work with partners to 
encourage greater levels of recycling and re-use, energy conservation and carbon 
reduction, and cleaner travel to work patterns among employees such as walking 
and cycling.  

3.31. We recognise the potential value of public sector spending to the Southwark 
economy and will continue to support local SMEs to access public procurement 
opportunities as well as build their capacity to compete effectively. We will also 
continue to secure supply chain opportunities for local businesses from regeneration 
schemes and major developments under the Supply Southwark banner.  

3.32. Some of the actions we will take to deliver against this priority include -  

• Support growth of businesses in key sectors;  

• Promote green business initiatives and encourage greener travel to work patterns 
among employees; 

• Support local SMEs to access public procurement opportunities; and, 

• Secure supply chain opportunities for local businesses from regeneration schemes 
and major developments.      

 Priority Four: Increasing business start ups   

3.33. Despite a rapid expansion of the business base over the last decade overall business 
density in the borough remains low, business start ups are below average and levels 
of self-employment lag behind the regional average. Our challenge is raise the level 
of business start ups and self-employment in the borough and build an 
entrepreneurial culture in Southwark.   

21



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 20 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

3.34. We will develop a culture of enterprise across communities and in particular amongst 
younger people, women and BME groups. To achieve this objective we shall work to 
develop a culture that values and supports entrepreneurship through: business 
education in our schools; working with employers to promote enterprise in schools; 
promoting and supporting work placements for young people; improving access to 
pre-start business support and advice, particularly for priority groups; improving 
access to finance; developing business mentoring networks; and, identifying 
opportunities to convert activities of community organisations into functioning social 
enterprises.  

3.35. Some of the actions we will take to deliver against this priority include -  

• Work with employers to promote enterprise in schools; 

• Promote self-employment as a route into work for workless residents;   

• Improve access to finance and pre-start business support and advice;  

• Develop business mentoring networks; and, 

• Identify opportunities to convert activities of community organisations into social 
enterprise.  

22



Southwark Enterprise and Employment Strategies 2010-2016 

 21 SHARED INTELLIGENCE 

 

 

 

1 FITZROY SQUARE, LONDON W1T 5HE 
020 7756 7600 

TOWER HOUSE, FISHERGATE, YORK YO10 4UA 
01904 567 381 

www.sharedintelligence.net 

solutions@sharedintelligence.net    

23



Scrutiny review proposal 

1 What is the review? 

2 What outcomes could realistically be achieved?  Which agency does the review seek 
to influence? 

3 When should the review be carried out/completed? i.e. does the review need to take 
place before/after a certain time?

4 What format would suit this review?  (e.g. full investigation, Q&A with cabinet 
member/partners, public meeting, one-off session) 

5 What are some of the key issues that you would like the review to look at? 

6 Who would you like to receive evidence and advice from during the review? 

7 Any suggestions for background information?  Are you aware of any best practice on 
this topic? 

8 What approaches could be useful for gathering evidence?  What can be done outside 
committee meetings? 
e.g. verbal or written submissions, site visits, mystery-shopping, service observation, meeting 
with stakeholders, survey, consultation event 

Agenda Item 7
24



 
SUGGESTED TOPICS FOR SCRUTINY 2010-11 

 
Committee 
 

Topic  

Overview & Scrutiny  
 Use of consultants and temporary staff – VFM of consultants 
 Review of local and general election process 
 Performance of Customer Service Centre 
 Joint service delivery with Lambeth 
 Customer care 
Regeneration & Leisure  
 Fairness of distribution of resources incl S106 
 Progress of Canada Water scheme/overspend on Canada Water library 
 Planning policy on tall buildings 
 Car parking policies – impact on local businesses 
 Management and delivery of small and large regeneration projects  
 Housing investment 
 Empty shop units 
 Sports development for disabled & older people & other disadvantaged groups 
 Access to employment  
Housing & Community Safety  
 Anti Social Behaviour 
 Noise 
 Who controls shared spaces on estates – green areas, tenants halls 
 Use and cost of CCTV 
 Leaseholder service charges 
 Student accommodation 
 Community safety 
 Repairs 
 Housing transfers and overcrowding 
 Estate parking 
  

25



Health and Adult Social Care  
 Substance misuse services 
 Older people’s services 
 Tackling isolation for older people and vulnerable adults 
 Health inequalities strategy 
 NHS Southwark services 
Environment, Transport, 
Communities & Citizenship 

 

 Community cohesion for marginalised groups 
 How the council involves local people in service delivery and planning and choosing service development 
 Equality of opportunity for local people in accessing council programmes 
 The edges of the borough – how do neighbouring councils work together to ensure that boundary areas 

receive high quality services?  Fly tipping, street cleaning, repairs, traffic scheme management 
 TfL - Quality of bus services across the borough, integration of local transport systems 
 Voluntary sector funding 
 Allotments 
 Borough high Street 
 Recycling targets 
 Roadworks 
 Lack of community facilities 
Education and Children’s 
Services 

 

 Childhood obesity 
 Kingsdale School admissions policy (NB this is a foundation school - unlikely that the council has any 

influence – Shelley Burke) 
 Primary school places and administration of admissions process 
 Teenage pregnancy 
 Youth provision and engagement - how will devolved commissioning work? 
 Academies 
 Parenting support 
 Services and support for disabled children 
 

26



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank. 

Agenda Annex
27



 

 
DISTRIBUTION LIST MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/11 
 
COMMITTEE: REGENERATION & LEISURE SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
NOTE:  Please notify amendments to Scrutiny Team (0207 525 0324) 
 
 

OPEN COPIES OPEN COPIES 

 
MEMBERS/RESERVES 
 
Councillor Mark Glover (Chair)   1 
Councillor Columba Blango   1 
Councillor Cathy Bowman   1 
Councillor Dan Garfield    1 
Councillor Helen Morrissey   1 
Councillor Paul Noblet    1 
Councillor Martin Seaton   1 
 
Councillor Stephen Govier (Reserve)  1 
Councillor Helen Hayes (Reserve)  1 
Councillor Jeff Hook (Reserve)   1 
Councillor Andy Simmons (Reserve)   1 
Councillor Geoffrey Thornton (Reserve)   1 
 
  
  
OTHER MEMBERS 

 
Councillor Lisa Rajan 1 
  
 
 
DEPARTMENTAL OFFICERS 
 
 

 
Libraries 3 
Local Studies Library 1 
Press 2 
 
Scrutiny Team SPARES 10 
 
Debbi Gooch, Legal Services 1 
Shelley Burke, Head of Overview & Scrutiny 1 
Dan Falchikov, Liberal Democrat Political Assistant1 
John Bibby, Labour Political Assistant 1 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TOTAL HARD COPY DISTRIBUTION  32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

HARD COPIES OF THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE ON REQUEST FROM THE SCRUTINY TEAM Tel: 0207 525 0324 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	6 Southwark Employment & Enterprise Strategies
	7 Work programming and scoping
	Suggested topics for scrutiny 2010-11

	
	

